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Serial Number: N90
Name and Address: Village house, No. 34 Lin Ma Hang, Sha Tau Kok, N.T.
District: North

No. 34 Lin Ma Hang was built in 1925. It is one of the largest houses in the village
being two storeys high and three bays wide. The house has a courtyard in front which
was a wo tong for drying rice. Lin Ma Hang is a Hakka village inhabited by clans
surnamed Cheung, Koon, Lau, Sin, Tsang and Ip, with the Ip clan being the biggest in
population. The Ips were originated from Haifeng, Guangdong. Ip Si-fat, the 11"
generation ancestor, started to settle here over 300 years ago. The village house is
owned by a member of the Ip clan, whose grandfather was Ip Ting-hei—a younger
brother of Ip Ting-sz, the first owner of the Old Residence of Ip Ting-sz (declared
monument). While Ip Ting-sz got rich in Thailand, his younger brother worked in
Jamaica and remitted money to his family in the village to build the house. The
horizontal draw-bars iron fence gate and well-guarded windows, built for security
reason, are evidence that bandits were prevalent in the past.
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Serial Number: N96

Name and Address: Sai Kung Lok Yuk Kindergarten, No. 19E Po Tung Road,
Sai Kung, N.T.

District: Sai Kung

Sai Kung Lok Yuk Kindergarten was built around 1940 for the residential use of Li
Shui-sang, a merchant. Early in 1943, the Japanese took over the residence and turned
it into a Kempeitai headquarters. After Hirohito’s surrender broadcast on 15 August
1945, the East River Guerrillas tried to force their way into the Kempeitai
headquarters. After an exchange of fires, the Japanese made their way to Kowloon
next day and the guerrillas effectively controlled Sai Kung. In late 1945, a handover
ceremony was held at the site at which the guerrillas formally relinquished their hold
of Sai Kung to allow for the British return. In 1946-1950, the site was requisitioned
for use as Sai Kung Police Station. Later in 1954 the site was purchased by Tsung
Tsin Mission of Hong Kong for use as the site of Lok Yuk Theological Seminary and
Sai Kung Church of the Mission. In 1967, the Seminary was incorporated into Chung
Chi Theological Seminary of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Since then, the
site has been used as the campus of Sai Kung Lok Yuk Kindergarten.
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Serial Number: N97

Name and Address: Yuk Yin Study Hall, No. 1A Sha Kok Mei Second Lane, Sai
Kung

District: Sai Kung

Yuk Yin Study Hall was erected in 1928. The cost of erection was subscribed by
emigrant villagers. Land was donated by several villagers of the Wai clan. During the
pre-war times, it was an old-style private school where one could find an altar to
Confucius. During the Japanese occupation, the study hall became a base of operation
of the Hong Kong and Kowloon Brigade of East River Guerrilla. For a time before
the end of the war, the Japanese lived in the study hall. At the war’s end in August
1945, a party of armed forces of the East River Guerrillas fought with the Japanese.
The next day the Japanese made their way to urban Kowloon, and their arms and
equipment were taken to Yuk Yin Study Hall for storage.

After the war, the study hall was aided by government subsidies and was named as
Yuk Yin Primary School until 1966 when it combined with four other village schools
and the campus was relocated to elsewhere. The study hall was converted into Sai
Kung branch of Chung Yip Middle School in 1971-1976, to provide education at
junior secondary level. In recent years, it was renovated to become an activity centre
for villagers.
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Serial Number: N98

Name and Address: Entrance Gate of Sai Lam Temple, No. 198 Sheung Wo Che,
Sha Tin, N.T.

District: Sha Tin

Sai Lam Temple was set up by a Buddhist monk bearing the title of Woon Ching,
whose original name was Leung Ki. The monk was a native of Nanhai, Guangdong.
Before he set up Sai Lam Temple, he had been running two vegetarian restaurants in
Kowloon. Close to a railway station and being a place of leisure with landscape
features such as bridges and running water, as well as serving vegetarian food and
providing quarters for the devotees of Buddhism, the Temple was a famous place
where people went for pilgrimage or for picnic. Following the change of the Temple’s
ownership in the 1970s and the death of the monk Woon Ching in 1980, the Temple
was left dilapidated. Years ago, most of the original structures of the Temple have
been altered, but the Entrance Gate still keeps its original outlook and remains as a
local landmark.
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Serial Number: N201

Name and Address: Old village school, No. 1 Tung Tau Tsuen, Ha Tsuen, Yuen
Long, N.T.

District: Yuen Long

The building at No. 1 Tung Tau Tsuen, Ha Tsuen, is a village school erected up in the
1930s. Funds for its erection were donated by five brothers of a Tang family whose
given names were: Pui-cheong, Sui-cheong, Yee-cheong, Hin-cheong, and Yi-cheong.
The village school was named after Tang Fong-chun, who was the great grandfather
of the five brothers. It was mainly for students of both sexes in Tung Tau Tsuen and
the nearby villages. The building has two floors. The upper floor was classrooms and
the lower floor was classroom and the living room of teachers. When the Japanese
swept through South China in the late 1930s, the school provided accommodation for
the war refugees. The school closed down in 1947/48 and the building was inhabited
by refugee families until it became a factory. Afterwards, the factory moved out and
the building has since been vacant.
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Serial Number: N209

Name and Address: Former Yuen Long Public Middle School, No. 3 Yau Shin
Street, Au Tau, Yuen Long, N.T.

District: Yuen Long

Yuen Long Public Middle School was the first government secondary school in the
New Territories. Local merchants including Tang Pak-kau and Chiu Lut-sau were in
the forefront of the drive for the subscription of HK$100,000 to erect the school,
whilst the government provided ground in Au Tau and a further HK$100,000, thus
setting the precedent of the ‘dollar-for-dollar’ subsidy basis for erecting schools in
other villages. The school campus was designed by Chau & Lee Architects and was
completed in 1949. With the addition of the north and south extensions in 1953, it
became a fully middle school with all six levels. At the lintel of the front entrance is a
stone plaque erected in 1949 to commemorate the school building’s completion.
Engraved on the plaque are four Chinese words written by a famous intellectual and
calligrapher Shum Kwong-yuet (1876-1960).

In 1989, Yuen Long Public Middle School was relocated to a new campus. In 1994
the campus in Au Tau was granted to TW.GHs. C.Y. Ma Charity Fund Practical
School, renamed as T.W.G.Hs. C.Y. Ma Memorial College in 2001.
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Serial Number: N215
Name and Address: No. 118 Wellington Street, Central, Hong Kong
District: Central and Western

Built around 1923, No. 118 Wellington Street was the main office of Ching Loong
Bakery which was founded in 1889 and registered a “Sunflower” trade mark in 1925.
The main office was relocated to elsewhere in Wellington Street in 1952, to make way
for Nam Wah Ink Company. In 1953, alterations and additions works were carried out
to the building. In its heyday, the company had business dealings with publishing
houses such as Chung Hwa Book Store, Commercial Press, Wah Kiu Yat Po, Kung
Sheung Daily News, etc. On the other hand, the proprietors of the bakery and the ink
company were full of benevolence towards the community. They donated generously,
especially to promote children’s education.

This 4-storey shophouse is built on an elongated rectangular plan. Its design involves
a unique blending of pre-war high ceiling plan and post-war upper-floor open air
balconies cantilevered over the pavement. The shop front is characterized by
calligraphy featuring the name of the ink company and its main businesses. They
were handwritten by a great calligrapher, Su Shi-jie (1883-1975).
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Serial Number: N219
Name and Address: Nos. 86 and 88 Stanley Main Street, Stanley, H.K.
District: Southern

The building in Nos. 86 and 88 Stanley Main Street is situated in one of the busiest
economic centres of Stanley Peninsula. It comprises in fact two semi-detached houses
which subsequently combined to each other at different levels to keep the present
restaurant operating. No. 86 was built in 1951 (architect: Chau & Lee Architects) and
No. 88 was built in 1948 (architect C.T. Wong). The two houses were originally
separately owned by Cheung Yue (who gave her address in Hong Kong as Seymour
Road) and Kwan Shuk-yee (who gave her address in Hong Kong as Shouson Hill
Road). In the early 1970s, the house at No. 88 was bought by Ching King-sing, a
teacher of St. Teresa’s School in Stanley, and Gloria Chu Wing-ngah, who named the
house as Wing’s Villa. Due to its ideal locality to appreciate the beautiful sceneries of
Stanley Bay and its attractive architectural outlook, it is an iconic building and local
landmark. It has been frequently used as a set in TV shows and films.



